
 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, June 30, 2015                                                                                                        City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Note:  A quorum of the Council will be present for dinner with the Japanese delegation at 5:30 p.m. 

CALL CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
1. Resolution Establishing Sister City Program (Council) 
2. Letter of Intent Ceremony to Adopt Tatsuno, Japan as City of Covington’s Sister City (Council) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  May 27, 2015 Tri Cities Special Meeting; June 9, 2015 Special Meeting–Joint Study 

Session with Parks & Recreation Commission; and June 9, 2015 Regular Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve Ordinance Adopting Astound Broadband Franchise (Lyons) 
C-4. Accept Grant from Flood Control District (Vondran) 
C-5. Approve Maintenance Facility Lease Renewal (Bates) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
3. Discuss Selection of Citizen and Honorary Citizen of the Year (Slate) 
4. Proclamation Recognizing Outgoing Police Chief Kevin Klason (Council) 

 
RECEPTION FOR POLICE CHIEF KEVIN KLASON 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – if needed 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 

 Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 30, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A SISTER CITY PROGRAM 

AND CRITERIA FOR THE FORMATION OF CITIZEN SISTER CITY 
ASSOCIATIONS. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Resolution Establishing a Sister City Program and Criteria for the Formation of 

Citizen Sister City Associations 
 
PREPARED BY:  Sara Springer, City Attorney 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The attached proposed resolution is presented for the city council’s consideration and adoption to 
establish a formal sister city program and criteria for approving the related citizen sister city 
associations. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
NA 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance      X      Resolution            Motion             Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to adopt the resolution, in substantial form as that attached hereto, 
to establish a sister city program and criteria for the formation of citizen 
sister city associations. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Attorney 

1 of 74



 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
ESTABLISHING A SISTER CITY AFFILIATIONS POLICY 
AND CRITERIA FOR THE FORMATION OF CITIZEN 
SISTER CITY COMMITTEES. 
 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the citizens of Covington wish to encourage educational, cultural, artistic, 
athletic, technical, and governmental exchanges to acquaint themselves with the cultural and 
political diversity of the world and to enhance international communication and understanding; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desirable to provide the citizens of Covington with an opportunity to 
act as a part of the global community and benefit from the exchange of relations; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is desirable to encourage international trade and tourism and economic 
development between Covington and our sister cities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Covington’s sister cities should be carefully selected to assure the special 
relationships will be useful, educational, and of maximum benefit; and 
 
 WHEREAS, sister city relationships should be based upon common interests and 
characteristics important to both Covington and affiliated sister cities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the resources of city government are limited in being able to financially 
support such affiliations. 
 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, hereby resolves as follows: 
 
 
Section 1. Covington Sister City Program Creation; Objectives. Covington hereby 
establishes the Covington Sister City Program, which will seek to develop sister city 
relationships that serve one or more of the following objectives: 

 
A. To provide awareness of, and sensitivity to, cultural diversity; 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

2 of 74



B. To provide opportunities for our citizens to interact and exchange social, technical, and 
educational ideas within the global community; 

 
C. To share expertise in solving municipal problems; and 

 
D. To develop business and economic ties in Covington, exchange business practices, and 

encourage tourism. 
 
 

Section 2. Sister City Selection Guidelines and Procedures.  
 

A. Proponents advocating a new sister city affiliation shall present documentation to the city 
manager indicating why a prospective sister city is being proposed, how the prospective 
sister city meets the guidelines included below, and how Covington citizens will benefit 
from the opportunity to participate in exchanges to broaden their understanding of the 
world’s cultural, political, and social diversity. 

 
B. To ensure that sister city affiliations reflect the community’s interests and meets the 

above objectives of the Covington Sister City Program, the qualifications and 
compatibility of potential affiliations should consider the following: 

 
1. Sustainable community presence showing support and forming an association 

pursuant to the guidelines below, willing to work closely with the City of 
Covington; 

 
2. The city being considered shall have congruence in its own charter to the 

mission and vision statement of the City of Covington; 
 

3. Similarity in size, demographic characteristics, historical development, or 
proximity to a major urban center; and  

 
4. A strong system of education or demonstrated commitment to serving the 

educational needs of its citizens.  
 

C. The city manager will advise the Covington City Council whether the specified criteria 
for affiliation have been met and will forward a recommendation to the Covington City 
Council for final action. 

 
D. Upon acceptance of the prospective sister city by the Covington City Council, the elected 

bodies of both the City of Covington and the proposed sister city affiliation shall adopt a 
resolution formalizing the sister city relationship. 
 

E. After adoption of the resolution by the Covington City Council formally recognizing the 
sister city relationship, proponents of the newly established sister city will form an 
independent Covington Sister City Association as prescribed in Section 3 of this 
Resolution.  

3 of 74



 
 
Section 3. Establishment of Sister City Associations. To assure that new sister city affiliations 
are generally reflective of the community and are managed effectively by the City of Covington 
in partnership with citizen communities with resources adequate to the task, the Covington City 
Council will seek to approve independent Covington Sister City Associations pursuant to the 
following: 
 

A. An Association shall have a formal incorporated structure in accordance with 
Washington State Law governing non-profit incorporation and 501(c)3 non-profit 
organization status with the Internal Revenue Service. 

 
B. The formal name of a Covington Sister City Association shall be “Covington-  (full city 

name) Sister City Association”. 
 
C. An Association shall present a work plan and budget to the Covington City Council for 

the twelve-month period following the request for formal affiliation showing how their 
activities will further the objectives of the Covington Sister City Program. 
 

D. The City of Covington recognizes an active sister city association is essential to the 
vitality and success of the Covington Sister City Program.  The City expects each 
Covington Sister City Association, established under this Resolution, to support 
friendship and sister city relationships by:   
 

1. Establishing and maintaining positive relationships with its counterpart 
association.  
 

2. Developing the resources needed to support the work program and continued 
relationships.    

 
3. Linking organizations, people, businesses, and institutions in Covington with 

the sister city.  
 

4. Conducting fund-raising and providing in-kind support to sustain the 
Association.  

 
5. Informing, educating, and engaging the community in opportunities to learn 

and participate in the sister city relationships.  
 

6. Planning, organizing, and implementing bi-lateral exchanges and formal 
visits. 

 
7. Communicating with the City about opportunities for involvement. 

 
E. A Covington Sister City Association shall annually report to the Covington City Council 

on the status of their sister city relationship including a review of accomplishments and 

4 of 74



successes of the program, events and activities, bi-lateral exchanges that occurred in the 
past twelve months, and a summary of expenditures since the last report. The Covington 
City Council may provide input on additional plans and activities. 

 
F. Notwithstanding the above criteria, the approval of a Covington Sister City Association 

may be approved or limited as the Covington City Council may deem appropriate.  
 

G. If the Covington City Council chooses to terminate the formal sister city relationship, the 
City of Covington and Covington Sister City Association will notify the sister city of the 
dissolution. Upon final action of the Covington City Council to terminate the formal 
sister city relationship, the Board of Directors of the Covington Sister City Association 
shall take the necessary actions to dissolve the Association in accordance with adopted 
by-laws and the requirements of the State of Washington. 

 
 
Section 4. City Funding for Sister City Affiliations.  
 

A. City funding of Covington Sister City Association activities and programs shall be 
limited to administrative support and services, including: 

 
1. Providing staff support necessary to establish and maintain communication 

with its sister cities. 
 

2. Professional services such as printing, mailing services, and graphic design. 
 

3. Accountancy services such as accountant consultation and other reasonable 
professional services needed for the creation and maintenance of a non-profit 
sister city committee. 
 

4. Transportation services when the City of Covington is hosting public official 
visiting from a formally recognized sister city. 

 
B. The amount of funding for the administrative support and services noted above will be 

determined by the City Council through the annual budget process. 
 

C. All financial support beyond administrative support will be the responsibility of the 
individual Covington Sister City Associations and sponsors of the Associations and/or 
individual sister city affiliations. Any funding for private purposes is prohibited. 

 
D. Non-perishable official gifts received by the City or by an Association on behalf of the 

City, received in the course of sister city activities, will be the sole property of the City of 
Covington. The City will maintain an inventory of such gifts and will attempt to display 
them in appropriate public settings. 

 
 

5 of 74



 ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Covington, Washington, in open and 
regular session this 30th day of June, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
                  MARGARET HARTO, MAYOR 

 
ATTESTED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

6 of 74



Agenda Item 2  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: June 30, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  SISTER CITY LETTER OF INTENT WITH TATSUNO, JAPAN 
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Regan Bolli, City Manager 
  
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Letter of Intent 
2. Sister City Agreement  

 
PREPARED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
For several months we have been coordinating the creation of a sister city relationship with the 
City of Tatsuno, Japan.  The letter of intent and subsequent agreement are different from the 
sister city resolution as the resolution grants the authority to create sister city relationships 
generally and the letter of intent indicates a desire to create a sister city relationship with a 
specific city; Tatsuno, Japan.  By signing the letter the city is expressing their intent to enter into 
a sister city relationship with Tatsuno that should be finalized on October 4, 2015 when the 
agreement is signed by both cities’ mayors in Tatsuno, Japan.   
  
ALTERNATIVES: 
Chose to not enter into the agreement  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance       Resolution         Motion     X    Other 
 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney  
 

7 of 74



 
 
 
 

Letter of Intent 
 
The City of Covington in the State of Washington, U.S.A. and Tatsuno City in Hyogo 
Prefecture, Japan (“The Parties”) hereby confirm their will to conduct exchange activities to 
promote mutual understanding as described below, on the assumption that they shall enter 
into a sister city agreement. 
 
 
1. The Parties shall conduct information sharing, personnel exchange, and other 

activities towards the goal of entering into a sister city agreement. 
2. The Parties shall strive to enter into the sister city agreement on the     day 

of               , 2015. 
3. The sister city agreement shall be as attached. 
 
 
Signed in the City of Covington 
On the 30th day of June, 2015 
 
 
 

 
 
                                            

 
 
                                     

Margaret Harto 
Mayor of the City of Covington 
The State of Washington, U.S.A. 

Hajime Kurihara 
Mayor of Tatsuno City 
Hyogo Prefecture, Japan 
 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

8 of 74



 
 
 
 

Sister City Agreement 
between 

The City of Covington in the State of Washington, U.S.A. 
and 

Tatsuno City in Hyogo Prefecture, Japan 
 
The City of Covington in the State of Washington, U.S.A. and Tatsuno City in Hyogo 
Prefecture, Japan hereby recognize each other as sister cities.  The purpose of this 
agreement is to deepen friendship and mutual understanding between the two cities, and to 
create better local communities through reciprocal exchange. 
 
The City of Covington, Tatsuno City, and their respective citizens shall strive to promote 
exchange in a wide variety of fields including culture, education, arts, and the economy 
while taking advantage of the characteristics of each city, and foster the global perspectives 
and emotional richness of children, who will play a central role in our future societies, in 
order to contribute to their future growth. 
 
The agreement is created in English and Japanese languages, both texts being equally 
authentic, and effective upon the date of signing. 
 
Signed in                         
On the       day of                 , 2015 
 

 
 
                                            

 
 
                                     

Margaret Harto 
Mayor of the City of Covington 
The State of Washington, U.S.A. 

Hajime Kurihara 
Mayor of Tatsuno City 
Hyogo Prefecture, Japan 

 

ATTACHMENT 2

9 of 74



Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  June 30, 2015   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  MAY 27, 2015 SPECIAL JOINT MEETING WITH 

BLACK DIAMOND, COVINGTON, AND MAPLE VALLEY MINUTES; JUNE 
9, 2015 SPECIAL JOINT STUDY SESSION WITH PARKS & RECREATION 
COMMISSION MINUTES; AND JUNE 9, 2015 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the May 27, 2015 Special Joint Meeting with 
Black Diamond, Covington, and Maple Valley Minutes; June 9, 
2015 Special Joint Study Session with Parks & Recreation 
Commission Minutes; and June 9, 2015 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

10 of 74



Unapproved Draft – May 27, 2015 Joint City Council Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval: June 30, 2015 
 

1 
 

City of Black Diamond/City of Covington/City of Maple Valley 
City Council Special Joint Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday, May 27, 2015 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Joint Meeting of the City Councils for the cities of Black Diamond, Covington and Maple 
Valley was called to order at Covington City Hall Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, 
Covington, Washington, Wednesday, May 27, 2015, at 7:00 p.m., with Covington Mayor 
Margaret Harto presiding. 
 
BLACK DIAMOND COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mayor Carol Benson, Mayor Pro Tem Tamie Deady, Craig Goodwin, Janie Edelman, Erika 
Morgan, and Ron Taylor.  
 
BLACK DIAMOND STAFF PRESENT: 
Seth Boettcher, Public Works Director; and Brenda Martinez, City Clerk/HR Manager 
 
COVINGTON COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mayor Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Sean Smith. 
 
COVINGTON COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Mayor Pro Tem Jeff Wagner. 
 
COVINGTON STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Don Vondran, Public 
Works Director; Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst; Richard Hart, 
Community Development Director; Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager; Noreen Beaufrere, 
Personnel Manager; Robert Meyers, Building Official; Rachel Bahl, Aquatics Supervisor; and 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
MAPLE VALLEY COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Mayor Bill Allison, Deputy Mayor Sean Kelly, Layne Barnes, Noel Gerken, Linda Johnson, 
Dana Parnello, and Erin Weaver. 
 
MAPLE VALLEY STAFF PRESENT: 
David Johnston, City Manager; Greg Brown, Parks & Recreation Director; Dorothy Stickney, 
Executive Assistant; Steve Clark, Public Works & Community Development Director; and 
Shaunna Lee Rice, City Clerk. 
 
CALL MEETING TO ORDER: 
Mayor Harto called the 8th annual joint meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INTRODUCTIONS: 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by First Class Scout Alex Keifer from Troop 711 and First 
Class Scout Marcus Cuccia from Troop 945. 

11 of 74



Unapproved Draft – May 27, 2015 Joint City Council Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval: June 30, 2015 
 

2 
 

 
INTRODUCTIONS: 
Mayor Harto introduced new Covington City Manager Regan Bolli.  The councils and staff of 
the three cities then each introduced themselves. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Mayor Harto called for approval of the agenda. 
 
There was a motion and a second to approve the agenda.  Motion passed with all voting in favor. 
 
OPENING REMARKS – MAYOR HARTO: 
Mayor Harto welcomed all attendees and introduced King County Councilmember Reagan 
Dunn. 
 
ITEMS FOR JOINT COUNCIL DISCUSSION: 
1.  King County Council Update from Councilmember Reagan Dunn. 
 
King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn provided an update.   
 
2.  Update on Current and Future Projects. 
 
Covington City Manager Regan Bolli, Maple Valley City Manager David Johnston, and Black 
Diamond Public Works Director Seth Boettcher and Mayor Carol Benson gave the report on this 
item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and staff provided responses. 
 
3.  Parks and Trails Presentation. 
 
Maple Valley Parks & Recreation Director Greg Brown, Covington Parks & Recreation Director 
Scott Thomas, and Black Diamond Public Works Director Seth Boettcher gave the report on this 
item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and staff provided responses. 
 
4.  Update on Both Interlocal Agreements. 
 
Covington Public Works Director Don Vondran and Covington Community Development 
Director Richard Hart gave the report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments. 
 
Mayor Harto recessed the meeting for a five minute break and then re-adjourned. 
 
5.  Human Services Report. 
 

12 of 74



Unapproved Draft – May 27, 2015 Joint City Council Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval: June 30, 2015 
 

3 
 

Cheryl Hanson, Director of the Black Diamond Community Center; Mark Pursley, Director of 
the Greater Maple Valley Community Center; and Victoria Throm, Covington Personnel & 
Human Services Analyst, gave the report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions; and Ms. Hanson, Mr. Pursley, Ms. 
Throm, and Mayor Harto provided responses. 
 
All three councils concurred that it would be beneficial for the three cities to explore 
opportunities for collaboration. 
 
6.  Decision to Dissolve Southeast Area Transportation Solutions (SEATS). 
 
Covington City Manager Regan Bolli gave the report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and discussed. 
 
All three councils concurred to dissolve SEATS. 
 
COUNCIL CLOSING REMARKS: 
Mayor Harto invited all councilmembers to proceed around the room to provide remarks 
regarding the meeting. 
 
Mayor Harto closed by thanking everyone for their attendance. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:50 p.m.  
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

13 of 74



Unapproved Draft – June 9, 2015 Special Joint Study Session with Parks & Recreation Commission 
Submitted for Approval:  June 30, 2015 
 
 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Joint Study Session with Parks & Recreation Commission 

Tuesday, June 9, 2015 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Special Joint Study Session with the Parks & Recreation Commission was called to order in 
the City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
June 9, 2015, at 6:05 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Sean Smith. 
 
PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Conni Elliott, Troy McIntyre, Laura Morrissey, Zbigniew Tomalik, and Steven Pand. 
 
PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
Bryan Higgins and Lisa Knapton. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation 
Director; Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager; Salina Lyons, Principal Planner; and Sharon Scott, 
City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the joint study session to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to approve the agenda. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
a. Funding for Maintenance and Operations. 
 
Chair Laura Morrissey provided opening remarks on this item and turned the report over to Steve 
Pand who offered his input on this item. 
 
The Council advised the Parks & Recreation Commission that a better approach would be for the 
commission to provide input on the topic for Council consideration. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions. City Manager Regan Bolli, Public 
Works Director Don Vondran, Parks & Recreation Director Scott Thomas, and Park Volunteer 
George Pearson provided responses. 

14 of 74



Unapproved Draft – June 9, 2015 Special Joint Study Session with Parks & Recreation Commission 
Submitted for Approval:  June 30, 2015 
 
 
 
b. City Council Vision for Town Center Plaza. 
 
Chair Laura Morrissey provided the opening remarks on this item and requested Council input 
on its vision for town center in order for the commission to gather ideas. 
 
The Council advised the Parks & Recreation Commission that a better approach would be for the 
commission to provide input on the topic for Council consideration. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and feedback on this item regarding possible features and 
amenities. 
 
Mayor Harto and Mayor Pro Tem Wagner requested input on the Parks & Recreation 
Commission’s vision for the town center, and commissioners provided responses. 
 
c. City Council Vision for Recreation Programming. 
 
Chair Laura Morrissey provided the opening remarks on this item and requested Council input 
on its vision for growth of recreation programming. 
 
The Council advised the Parks & Recreation Commission that a better approach would be for the 
commission to provide input on the topic for Council consideration. 
 
Councilmembers and commissioners discussed this item. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
George Pearson, Covington resident, noted that budget and staffing would need to be 
considered in going forward with the maintenance and operations discussion. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 

15 of 74



Unapproved Draft – June 9, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 30, 2015 
 
 

1 
 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, June 9, 2015 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, June 9, 
2015, at 7:15 p.m., with Mayor Margaret Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Joe Cimaomo, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Sean Smith, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Regan Bolli, City Manager; Don Vondran, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Salina Lyons, 
Principal Planner; Karla Slate, Communications & Marketing Manager; Scott Thomas, Parks & 
Recreation Director; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Bob Lindskov, City Engineer; Pat Patterson, 
Recreation Manager; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  There was a motion to amend the agenda to include a proclamation that 
did not pass. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 

• Diane Carlson, Director of Regional Initiatives, Office of King County Executive, gave a 
presentation entitled, Best Starts for Kids Program. 

 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Ms. Carlson provided responses.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  May 26, 2015 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 

16 of 74



Unapproved Draft – June 9, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 30, 2015 
 
 

2 
 

C-2. Vouchers: Vouchers #32592-32651, including ACH payments and electronic funds 
transfers, in the Amount of $439,718.71, Dated May 29, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1003801903-1003801914 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the Amount 
of $171,424.05, Dated June 5, 2015. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, 
WASHINGTON, ADOPTING THE 2016-2021 SIX-
YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM  

 
C-3. Adopt Resolution for 2016-2021 Transportation Improvement Program. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded 
to approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1.  Consider Appointments to Arts Commission.   
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded 
to appoint Ed White to fill Position No. 5 on the Arts Commission with a term expiring 
May 31, 2018.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Mayor Pro Tem Wagner seconded to 
appoint Gini Cook to fill Position No. 6 on the Arts Commission with a term expiring May 
31, 2018.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
appoint Lesli Cohan to fill Position No. 7 on the Arts Commission with a term expiring 
May 31, 2018.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 

 
2.  Discuss and Approve Arts Funding Program. 
 
Recreation Manager Pat Patterson and Arts Commission Chair Ed White gave the staff report on 
this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Patterson and Mr. White 
provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Public Arts Fundraising Plan and the Art Project Priority list as provided in 
the agenda packet and as recommended by the Arts Commission.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion 
carried. 

17 of 74



Unapproved Draft – June 9, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 30, 2015 
 
 

3 
 

 
3.  Approve Jenkins Creek Park Pedestrian Project Construction Contract. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Vondran provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
award the bid of the Jenkins Creek Park Pedestrian and ADA Improvement Project to 
WHH Nisqually Federal Services, LLC in the amount of $602,006.89.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion 
carried. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded 
to authorize the city manager to execute a task order with the city’s on-call consultant 
Gray & Osborne for construction management not to exceed $32,730.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion 
carried. 
 
4.  Discuss and Approve Covington Community Park Maintenance Recommendation. 
 
Public Works Director Don Vondran gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Vondran provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  Mayor Pro Tem Wagner moved and Councilmember Cimaomo seconded 
to reject all bids received for Covington Community Park maintenance and authorize city 
staff to prepare all necessary 2015 budget amendments to account for all required 
equipment and hiring costs associated with performing all Covington Community Park 
maintenance with city staff and resources.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Mayor Harto advised that staff had requested the removal of a youth member from the Human 
Services Commission due to attendance issues. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus for staff to prepare a letter for the Mayor’s 
signature to that commissioner informing them of their termination from the commission. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Mary Pritchard, 26103 197th Avenue SE, Covington, advised Council that the trucks leaving 
the Cedar Springs Apartments construction did not have their loads covered which she thought 
was a requirement.  Mrs. Pritchard also informed Council about issues with the flaggers for this 
project creating long traffic backups on Kent Kangley. 
 

18 of 74



Unapproved Draft – June 9, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  June 30, 2015 
 
 

4 
 

Mrs. Pritchard complimented Mr. Patterson and Mr. White on the staff report for the Arts 
Funding Program and questioned her memory that years ago a certain amount of development 
money was earmarked for public art.  Mrs. Pritchard also inquired as to whether a biennial 
budget would be coming forward again. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Potential litigation pursuant to (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)) from 9:10 to 9:30 p.m. 
 
Mayor Harto announced the City Council would move into Executive Session for 20 minutes 
after which no further action was anticipated.   
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:30 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

19 of 74



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 30, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #32652-32694, including ACH payments and electronic funds 
transfers, in the amount of $164,003.56, dated June 12, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1003861162-1003861178 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of 
$177,760.23, Dated June 19, 2015. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment Vouchers #32652-32694, including ACH 
payments and electronic funds transfers, in the amount of $164,003.56, 
dated June 12, 2015; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1003861162-
1003861178 inclusive, plus employee direct deposits, in the amount of 
$177,760.23, Dated June 19, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

20 of 74



21 of 74



22 of 74



23 of 74



24 of 74



25 of 74



26 of 74



27 of 74



28 of 74



29 of 74



30 of 74



31 of 74



32 of 74



 

 Consent Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  June 30, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE 

WITH ASTOUND BROADBAND, LLC D/B/A WAVE, TO CONSTRUCT, 
MAINTAIN, OPERATE, REPLACE, AND REPAIR TELECOMMUNICATION 
SYSTEMS IN CERTAIN DESIGNATED PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF THE 
CITY OF COVINGTON, FOR A TEN YEAR TERM. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Proposed Ordinance for a Non-Exclusive Franchise with Astound Broadband. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Principal Planner 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In September 2014 the city was approached by Astound Broadband, LLC (“Astound”) regarding 
their desire to construct fiber optic facilities to provide telecommunications, private line, and 
internet access services to major employers, schools, government buildings, and health care 
facilities within the region. Astound also intends to construct fiber optic facilities to connect to 
existing cell phone towers.  
 
Astound is a Washington limited liability company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
WaveDivision Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Wave”). Wave is 
headquartered in Kirkland and, through its operating subsidiaries, provides cable television, 
high-speed data, and VoIP telephone services to over 415,500 customers in Oregon, Washington, 
and California. Astound is registered as a Competitive Telecommunications Company with the 
Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission and holds Domestic and International 
Section 214 authorizations from the Federal Communications Commission. 
 
City staff have been in negotiations with Astound for the past nine months regarding the terms of 
their telecommunications franchise agreement with the city. Generally, the attached proposed 
franchise (Attachment 1) is for a ten (10) year term, requires Astound to reimburse the city for 
administrative costs incurred in drafting the franchise (up to $5,000), and requires Astound to 
obtain a right-of-aw permit and follow all local, state, and federal laws when constructing their 
facilities. The portion of Astound’s facilities proposed to run through Covington may include 
both overhead and underground construction, as allowed by the city’s street standards and 
approved by the city engineer.    
 
Notably, staff also worked to ensure that Astound would be willing to negotiate with the city to 
trade for services, e.g. Astound could utilize existing city conduit in exchange for their 
extension/placement of new conduit for the city’s future use. City staff will be meeting with 
Astound’s fiber construction team to follow-up on the negotiation process for potential 
conduit/fiber swaps. The conduit/fiber negotiations will result in a separate agreement that will 
require city council approval.  

33 of 74



 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
As per the proposed franchise agreement, the City can recover up to $5,000 in administrative 
fees associated with negotiating and drafting the proposed franchise.  Additional revenue will be 
collected from fees associated with Right-of-Way Use Permits applied for by Astound for the 
construction of their proposed telecommunication facilities.  
 
Finally, should Astound chose to offer telecommunication services to Covington residents, the 
city may impose its utility tax on said services. However, any revenues generated from a utility 
tax on Astound’s services would most likely be minimal until their network is established and 
their customer base expands. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:       X    Ordinance            Resolution            Motion             Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to adopt an ordinance, in substantial form as that attached hereto, 
granting a non-exclusive telecommunications franchise to Astound 
Broadband, LLC, for a ten year term. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director, Public Works Director, 
Community Development Director 

34 of 74



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 04-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON GRANTING 
A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE TO ASTOUND 
BROADBAND, LLC D/B/A WAVE, TO CONSTRUCT, 
MAINTAIN, OPERATE, REPLACE, AND REPAIR A 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM IN, ACROSS, OVER, 
ALONG, UNDER, THROUGH, AND BELOW CERTAIN 
DESIGNATED PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, FOR A TEN YEAR TERM.  

 
  
 WHEREAS, Astound Broadband, LLC d/b/a Wave (“Astound”), is a telecommunications 
company that provides voice and data services to customers; and 
 

WHEREAS, Astound’s desired route through the City of Covington (the “City”), requires 
the use of certain portions of City rights-of-way for the installation, operation, and maintenance 
of a telecommunications system; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city council has determined that the use of portions of the City’s rights-

of-way for installation of telecommunications systems benefits local businesses and the region as 
a result of such services; and 

 
WHEREAS,  a franchise for use of public rights-of-way allows for the construction of 

amenities necessary to serve the future needs of the citizens of Covington, and the coordination, 
planning, and management of the City’s rights-of-way is necessary to ensure that the burden of 
costs relating to use of the public rights-of-way are fairly allocated; and 

 
WHEREAS, RCW 35A.11.020 grants the City broad authority to regulate the use of the 

public right-of-way and RCW 35A.47.040 grants the City broad authority to grant nonexclusive 
franchise agreements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City determines to exercise its authority, consistent with state and 
federal law, to grant a nonexclusive franchise to Astound in accordance with the provisions of 
the Franchise; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 
WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Nonexclusive Franchise Granted. 
 

A. Grant. The City hereby grants to Astound, subject to the conditions prescribed in this 
Ordinance, the franchise rights and authority (the “Franchise”) to construct, install, replace, 
repair, monitor, maintain, use, and operate the equipment and facilities necessary for a 
telecommunications system in, under, on, across, over, and through the City-owned rights-of-

ATTACHMENT 1

35 of 74



2 
 

way generally described in Exhibit A (the “Franchise Area”). The scope of this grant extends 
only to the telecommunications facilities by Astound in the Franchise Area to provide 
telecommunications services, Internet access services, and private line services (the “Authorized 
Activities”). Facilities include all wire, lines, cables, conduit, equipment, switches, and 
supporting structures located in the City’s right-of-way and utilized by Astound in the operation 
of Authorized Activities by this Ordinance (the “Facilities”). Such grant is subject to all 
applicable laws and ordinances of the City of Covington and the State of Washington in 
existence at the time of this franchise grant or hereafter enacted or amended. In the event that 
Astound intends to provide services other than the Authorized Activities, Astound shall be 
required to obtain an additional or revised franchise from the City to the extent required by the 
City and law. 

 
B. Non-Exclusive. The foregoing Franchise rights and authority shall not be deemed to be 

exclusive to Astound and shall in no way prohibit or limit the City’s ability to grant other 
franchises, permits, or rights along, over, or under the Franchise Area; provided, that such other 
franchises do not unreasonably interfere with Astound’s Franchise granted herein as determined 
by the City. This Franchise shall in no way interfere with existing utilities or in any way limit, 
prohibit, or prevent the City from using the Franchise Area or affect the City’s jurisdiction over 
the Franchise Area in any way. The City shall administer the public right-of-way and this 
Franchise in a competitively neutral and non-discriminatory manner with respect to Astound and 
other similarly-situated telecommunications franchisees. 
 

C. No Property Interest. This Ordinance authorizes Astound to occupy and use the 
Franchise Area for the Authorized Activities. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to 
grant or convey any right, title, or interest in the Franchise Area to Astound.  

 
Section 2. Authority. The City’s public works director or his/her designee is hereby granted the 
authority to administer and enforce the terms and provisions of this Ordinance and may develop 
such lawful and reasonable rules, policies, and procedures as he/she deems necessary to carry out 
the provisions contained herein.  
 
Section 3. Term; Effective Date; Renewal.  
 

A. Term. Subject to completion of the requirements of this Section 3 and Section 4 herein, 
the Franchise granted herein shall remain in full force and effect for a period of ten (10) years 
from the effective date of this ordinance.  

 
B. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall not take effect and Astound shall have no rights 

under this Ordinance unless a written acceptance from Astound is received by the City pursuant 
to Section 4 herein.      

 
C. Renewal. If Astound requests a renewal prior to the end of the Franchise term, the City’s 

public works director may, at the City’s sole discretion, extend the term of the Franchise for an 
additional ten (10) year term beyond the term provided for in Section 3.A herein to allow 
processing of renewal. If the City elects to extend the term of the Franchise, written notice of the 
extension shall be provided to Astound prior to the end of the original Franchise term.  If the 

36 of 74



3 
 

City determines to not extend the term of the Franchise for an additional ten (10) year term it 
shall be extended on a month-to-month basis and may be terminated by either party following 
one hundred eighty (180) days’ notice to the other. 

 
Section 4. Acceptance of Terms and Conditions. The full acceptance of the Franchise and all 
the terms and conditions by Astound shall be filed in writing with the City within thirty (30) days 
of the effective date of this Ordinance in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B. Failure on the 
part of Astound to file said acceptance within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this 
Ordinance shall result in this Ordinance having no further force or effect and all rights granted 
under the Franchise shall terminate.  

 
Section 5. Applicable Regulations; Construction Approvals and Standards. The following 
provisions shall be considered mandatory and failure to abide by any conditions provided herein 
shall be deemed as non-compliance with the terms of the Franchise and may result in some or all 
of the penalties specified in Section 6 herein.  

 
A. City Permits Required. No construction, maintenance, or repairs (expect for emergency 

repairs) shall be undertaken in the Franchise Area without first obtaining appropriate rights-of-
way use permits required under Chapter 12.65 CMC. Full compliance with the conditions of the 
issued permit(s) shall be mandatory. In the event of any emergency in which any of Astound’s 
Facilities in or under any right-of-way breaks, becomes damaged, or if Astound’s construction 
area is otherwise in such a condition as to immediately endanger the property, life, health, or 
safety of individuals necessitating emergency work, Astound may perform said work without 
first applying for and obtaining a permit as required by the City. In case of such an emergency, 
within one (1) business day of the emergency work performed Astound shall apply for, and 
thereafter diligently pursue the issuance of, any required permits from the City for the emergency 
work. 

 
B. Other Permits and Approvals. Nothing in this Ordinance shall relieve Astound from 

any obligation to obtain approvals or necessary permits from applicable federal, state, and local 
authorities for all activities in the Franchise Area.  

 
C. City Ordinances and Regulations. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be deemed to restrict 

the City’s ability to adopt and enforce all necessary and appropriate ordinances regulating the 
performance of the conditions of the Franchise, including any valid ordinance made in the 
exercise of its police powers in the interest of public safety and for the welfare of the public. The 
City shall have the authority at all times to control by appropriate regulations the location, 
elevation, manner of construction, and maintenance of any Facilities by Astound, and Astound 
shall conform with all such regulations, unless compliance would cause Astound to violate other 
requirements of law. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this Franchise and any 
other ordinance(s) enacted under the City’s authority, such other ordinance(s) shall take 
precedence over the provisions set forth in this Franchise.   

 
D. Construction Standards. Any construction, installation, maintenance, and restoration 

activities performed by or for Astound within the Franchise Area shall be constructed and 
located so as to produce the least amount of interference with the free passage of pedestrian and 

37 of 74



4 
 

vehicular traffic. Astound shall at all times post and maintain proper barricades and comply with 
all applicable safety regulations during such period of construction as required by the ordinances 
of the City or the laws of the State of Washington, including RCW 39.04.180 for the 
construction of trench safety systems. All construction, installation, maintenance, and restoration 
activities shall be conducted such that they conform to and with Title 12 of the Covington 
Municipal Code.  

 
E. Underground Installation Required. All Facilities shall be installed underground in all 

areas of the City where all other telecommunications and cable facilities are located underground 
unless otherwise exempted from this requirement, in writing, by the City’s public works director. 
In instances when the undergrounding of Facilities is not required, Astound shall install Facilities 
only on existing utility poles and otherwise utilize only existing aerial telecommunication 
facilities, provided, however, Astound agrees to cooperate in relocating to underground facilities 
when all other utilities are required to place facilities underground for a City capital 
improvement project, joint trench opportunity, or for the public health, safety, and welfare. 

 
F. Relocation.  

 
1. Whenever the City causes public improvements to be constructed within the 

Franchise Area and such public improvement requires the relocation of Astound’s Facilities, the 
City shall provide Astound with not less than one hundred eighty (180) days written notice 
requesting such relocation along with plans for the public improvement that are sufficiently 
complete to allow for the initial evaluation, coordination, and development of a relocation plan. 
The City and Astound shall meet at a time and location determined by the City to discuss the 
project requirements, including critical timelines, schedules, construction standards, utility 
conflicts, as-built requirements, and other pertinent relocation plan details.  

 
2. To ensure the timely execution of relocation requirements, Astound shall, upon 

written request from the City, provide at Astound’s sole expense base maps, current as-built 
information, a detailed relocation plan (including a detailed schedule of relocation activities, 
identification of critical path, identification of facilities, and relocation procedures), and other 
design, technical, or operational requirements within the timeframe specified by the City.  
 

3. Astound may, after receipt of written notice from the City requesting relocation of its 
Facilities, submit to the City written alternatives to such relocation within a reasonable time 
specified by the City. Such alternatives shall include the use and operation of temporary facilities 
in adjacent rights-of-way. The City shall evaluate such alternatives and advise Astound in 
writing if one or more of the alternatives are suitable to accommodate the work that would 
otherwise necessitate relocation of the Facilities. If requested by the City, Astound shall submit 
additional information to assist the City in making such evaluation. The City shall give each 
alternative proposed by Astound full and fair consideration. In the event the City ultimately 
determines that there is no other reasonable alternative, Astound shall relocate its facilities as 
otherwise specified by the City. 

 
4. Upon final approval of the relocation plan by the City, Astound shall at its sole 

expense, unless otherwise prohibited by law, and at the reasonable timeframe specified by the 

38 of 74



5 
 

City, temporarily or permanently remove, relocate, place underground, change, or alter the 
position of any Facilities within the right-of-way whenever the City has determined that such 
removal, relocation, undergrounding, change, or alteration is reasonably necessary for the 
construction, repair, maintenance, installation, or operation of any public improvement in or 
upon the rights-of-way, or for public safety.  

 
5. If during the construction, repair, or maintenance of the City’s public improvement 

project an unexpected conflict occurs with Astound’s Facilities, Astound shall respond and 
commence efforts to resolve the conflict within twenty-four (24) hours of notification from the 
City. 
 

G. Removal or Abandonment. Upon the removal from service of any Astound Facilities 
from the Franchise Area, Astound shall comply with all applicable standards and requirements 
prescribed by the City for the removal or abandonment of said Facilities. None of the Facilities 
constructed or owned by Astound may be abandoned without the express written consent of the 
City. 

 
H. City Requested Facilities.   

 
1. At any time that Astound is constructing, relocating, or placing Facilities in public 

rights-of-way within the City limits, the City may require Astound to provide additional ducts, 
conduit, and related access structures. Astound agrees to perform such requests at the sole 
expense of the City and pursuant to RCW 35.99.070 and the applicable terms of this Ordinance.  
 

2. At any time that Astound is constructing, relocating, or placing Facilities in public 
rights-of-way within the City limits that: a) cross signaled intersections; b) borders any City 
property or facility; or c) borders any county, state, or special district facility, at the time of right-
of-way permit approval for said work the City may request Astound to provide break-out kits, 
splicing cases, splices, and/or cable vaults for the City at the sole expense of the City. Astound 
agrees to perform such requests pursuant to a mutually negotiated agreement with the City that 
shall be executed prior to the City issuing the right-of-way permit for said work.  

 
3. At any time Astound places fiber in the City’s public rights-of-way, at the time of 

right-of-way permit approval for said work either the City or Astound may request a meeting to 
cooperatively discuss and negotiate in good faith mutually beneficial opportunities associated 
with said work. Such opportunities may, among other things, involve installation of fiber by 
Astound for the City’s sole and exclusive use and the City’s grant to Astound of non-exclusive 
use of City-owned or controlled conduit. Any such arrangements to which the parties agree shall 
be formalized in a separate agreement between the City and Astound, which shall be approved 
by the city council and executed by both parties prior to the City issuing the right-of-way permit 
for said work.  

 
I. Bond. Before undertaking any of the work, installation, improvements, construction, 

repair, relocation, or maintenance authorized by this Ordinance, Astound shall upon request of 
the City furnish a bond executed by Astound and a corporate surety authorized to operate a 
surety business in the State of Washington, in such sum as may be set and approved by the City 

39 of 74



6 
 

as sufficient to ensure performance of Astound’s obligations under this Ordinance; provided, 
however, that such sum shall not exceed one hundred percent (100%) of the project construction 
cost of the proposed telecommunications system work by Astound in the Franchise Area. At 
Astound’s sole option, Astound may provide alternate security in the form of an assignment of 
funds or a letter of credit in the same amount as the bond. All forms of security shall be in the 
form reasonably accepted by the City. The bond shall be conditioned so that Astound shall 
observe all covenants, terms, and conditions and shall faithfully perform all of the obligations of 
this Ordinance and to repair or replace any defective Astound work or materials discovered in 
the Franchise Area.  

 
J. “One-Call” Location and Liability. Astound shall subscribe to and maintain 

membership in the regional “One-Call” utility location service and shall promptly locate all of its 
lines upon request. The City shall not be liable for any damages to Astound’s Facilities or for 
interruptions in service to Astound’s customers that are a direct result of work performed for any 
City project or for which Astound has failed to properly locate its lines and Facilities within the 
prescribed time limits and guidelines established by One-Call. The City shall also not be liable 
for any damages to Astound Facilities or for interruption in service to Astound’s customers 
resulting from the work of a third party performed under a permit issued by the City. 

 
K. As-Built Plans Required. Astound shall maintain accurate engineering plans and details 

of all installed Facilities within the Franchise Area and shall provide such information in both 
paper and electronic form using the most current AutoCAD version (or such other format as may 
be in general use in the telecommunications industry and reasonably acceptable to the City and 
Astound) prior to close-out of any permit issued by the City and any work undertaken by 
Astound pursuant to this Ordinance. The City shall determine the acceptability of any as-built 
submittals provided under this Section. 

 
L. Recovery of Costs. Astound shall be subject to all permit fees associated with activities 

undertaken through the authority granted in this Ordinance or under ordinances of the City.  
 

M. Vacation. If, at any time, the City shall vacate any City street, right-of-way, or other 
City-owned property that is subject to rights granted by this Ordinance and said vacation shall be 
for purposes of acquiring the fee or other property interest in said street, right-of-way, or other 
City-owned property for the use of the City in either its proprietary or governmental capacity, 
then the City may, at its sole option and by giving one hundred eighty (180) days written notice 
to Astound, terminate the Franchise with reference to such City street, right-of-way, or City-
owned property so vacated. The City shall not be liable for any damages or loss to Astound by 
reason of such termination other than those provided for in RCW 35.99.060. 

 
Section 6. Franchise Compliance.  
 

A. Franchise Violations. The failure by Astound to fully comply with any of the provisions 
of this Ordinance may result in a written notice from the City describing the violations of this 
Ordinance and requested remedial action to cure said violations in a timeframe of no less than 
thirty (30) days, which timeline may be extended at the City’s sole discretion if Astound 
promptly begins and demonstrates reasonable and consistent efforts to remedied the violations so 

40 of 74



7 
 

identified. The failure of Astound to cure said violations pursuant to the timeline and terms of the 
City’s written notice shall be considered sufficient grounds for the termination of all rights and 
privileges existing under the Franchise. 

 
B. Emergency Actions.  

 
1. If any of Astound’s actions, or any failure by Astound to act to correct a situation 

caused by Astound, are reasonably determined by the City to create a threat to life or property, 
financial harm, or cause a delay of the construction, repair, or maintenance of a public 
improvement, the City may order Astound to immediately correct said threat, financial harm, or 
delay or, at the City’s sole discretion, the City may undertake measures to correct said threat, 
financial harm, or delay itself; provided that, when possible, the City shall notify Astound and 
give Astound an opportunity to correct said threat, financial harm, or delay within a reasonable 
specified time, which shall be not less than thirty (30) days, before undertaking such corrective 
measures. Astound shall be liable for all reasonable costs, expenses,  and damages attributed to 
the correction of such an emergency situation as undertaken by the City to the extent that such 
situation was caused by Astound and shall further be liable for all reasonable costs, expenses, 
and damages resulting to the City from such situation attributable to Astound. Any 
reimbursement of such costs to the City shall be made within thirty (30) days of written notice of 
the completion of such action or determination of damages by the City. The failure by Astound 
to take appropriate action to correct a situation caused by Astound and identified by the City as a 
threat to public or private safety or property, financial harm, or delay of the construction, repair, 
or maintenance of a public improvement shall be considered a violation of the terms of this 
Ordinance.  

 
2. If during construction or maintenance of Astound’s Facilities any damage occurs to 

an underground facility and the damage results in the release of natural gas or other hazardous 
substance or potentially endangers life, health, or property, Astound or its contractor shall 
immediately call 911 or other local emergency response number. 

 
C. Other Remedies. Nothing in this Ordinance shall limit the City’s or Astound’s available 

remedies in the event of either party’s failure to comply with the provisions of this Ordinance 
including, but not limited to, a party’s right to a lawsuit for specific performance and/or 
damages. 

 
D. Removal of System. In the event that the Franchise is terminated as a result of violations 

of the terms of this Ordinance, Astound shall at its sole expense promptly remove all Facilities, 
provided that the City at its sole option may allow Astound to abandon its Facilities in place. 
 
Section 7. Insurance.  
 

A. Astound shall procure and maintain liability insurance written on a per occurrence basis 
during the full term of the Franchise for injuries to persons and damage to property. The policy 
or policies shall afford insurance covering all operations, vehicles, and employees with the 
following limits and provisions: 

 

41 of 74



8 
 

1. Commercial General Liability coverage with limits of not less than $2,000,000 
each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate and $2,000,000 products completed aggregate 
limit covering bodily injury and property damage; including contractual liability; personal injury; 
explosion hazard, collapse hazard, and underground property damage hazard; products; and 
completed operations. 

 
2. Automobile liability insurance with limits not less than $1,000,000 each 

occurrence, combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage, including owned, non-
owned,  and hired auto coverage, as applicable. 

 
3. Contractors’ pollution liability insurance, on an occurrence form, with limits not 

less than $1,000,000 each occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property 
damage.  

 
B. Such insurance shall specifically name as additional insured the City and its officers and 

employees and contain or be endorsed to contain that they shall be primary insurance as respect 
the City.  Any insurance or self-insurance or pool coverage maintained by the City shall be 
excess of Astound’s coverage and shall not contribute with it.  Astound may utilize primary and 
umbrella liability insurance policies to satisfy insurance policy limits required herein. 

 
C. If the City reasonably determines that circumstances warrant an increase in insurance 

coverage and liability limits to adequately cover the risks of the City, the City may require 
additional insurance to be acquired. The City shall provide written notice to Astound should the 
City exercise its right to require additional insurance.  
 

D. Astound shall procure and maintain liability insurance during the full term of the 
Franchise for  injuries to persons and damage to property which may arise from or in connection 
with the exercise of the rights, privileges, and authority granted hereunder to Astound, its agents, 
representatives, or employees. Astound shall provide original Certificates of Insurance and a 
copy of the amendatory endorsements to the City for its inspection.   
 
Section 8. Indemnification.  
 

Astound shall use reasonable and appropriate precautions to avoid damage to person or 
property in the construction, installation, repair, operation, and maintenance of its Facilities 
within the Franchise Area. Astound shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its 
agents, officers, employees and volunteers, from any and all third party claims, actions, or 
damages, or expense of any nature, including attorneys’ and expert witness fees, which may 
accrue to or be suffered by any person or persons, corporation, or property to the extent caused in 
part or in whole by any negligent act or omission of Astound, its officers, agents, servants, or 
employees, contractors, or subcontractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of 
the rights, benefits, privileges, or obligations granted to Astound by the Franchise except for 
those injuries or damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. In the event any claim or 
demand presented to or filed with the City that gives rise to Astound’s obligations pursuant to 
this Section, the City shall within a reasonable time notify Astound thereof (provided that in any 
event such notice shall provide Astound a reasonable time period in which to respond so its 

42 of 74



9 
 

rights are not prejudiced) and Astound shall have a right, at its election, to settle or compromise 
such claim or demand. In the even any third party claim or action is commenced in which the 
City is named a party and which suit or action is based on a claim or demand that gives rise to 
Astound’s obligation pursuant to this Section, the City shall promptly notify Astound thereof and 
Astound shall, at its sole cost and expense, defend such suit or action by attorneys of its own 
election. In defense of such suit or action, Astound may, at its election and its sole cost and 
expense, settle or compromise such suit or action.  
 

The City shall have the right at all times to participate through its own attorney in any suit or 
action that arises out of any right, privilege, or authority granted by or exercised pursuant to the 
Franchise when the City determines that such participation is required to protect the interests of 
the City or the public. Such participation by the City shall be at the City’s sole cost and expense.  

 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that the Franchise is subject to RCW 

4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or 
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of Astound and the 
City, its officers, employees, and agents, Astound’s liability hereunder shall be only to the extent 
of Astound’s negligence. 

 
With respect to the performance of the Franchise and as to claims against the City, its 

officers, agents, and employees, Astound expressly waives its immunity under Title 51 of the 
Revised Code of Washington, the Industrial Insurance Act, for injuries to its officers, agents, and 
employees and agrees that the obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless provided for in 
this Section extends to any claim brought by or on behalf of Astound’s officers, agents, or 
employees. This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  

 
Section 9. Transfer of Ownership.  
 

A. The rights, privileges, benefits, title, or interest provided by the Franchise shall not be 
sold, transferred, assigned, or otherwise encumbered without the prior written consent of the 
City, with such consent not being unreasonably withheld or delayed. No such consent shall be 
required, however, for a transfer in trust, for security purposes or by other hypothecation, or by 
assignment of any rights, title, or interest in Astound’s Facilities in order to secure indebtedness. 
Approval shall not be required for any transfer from Astound to another person or entity 
controlling, controlled by, or under common control with Astound, or in connection with the sale 
of all or substantially all of the assets of Astound or if Astound adopts a new company name, 
each without a change in control. Astound may license fibers to other users including to those 
operating a telephone business or services providers without the consent of the City provided that 
Astound remains solely responsible for compliance with the terms and conditions outlined in the 
Franchise.  The licensing or lease of fibers for other uses shall require a separate assignment, 
franchise, or right-of-way agreement approved by the City. 

 
B. In any transfer of the Franchise that requires the approval of the City, Astound shall show 

that the recipient of such transfer has the technical ability, financial capacity, and any other legal 
or general qualifications as reasonably determined by the City to be necessary to ensure that the 
obligations and terms required under the Franchise can be met to the full satisfaction of the City. 

43 of 74



10 
 

The qualifications of any transferee shall be determined by the Covington City Council and the 
approval of such transfer shall be granted by resolution of the Covington City Council. Any 
actual and reasonable administrative costs associated with the transfer of the Franchise that 
requires the approval of the City shall be reimbursed to the City within thirty (30) days of such 
transfer, provided that such reimbursement shall not exceed $5,000. 
 
Section 10. Administrative Fees; Utility Tax. 
 

A. Franchise Fee Precluded. Pursuant to RCW 35.21.860, the City is precluded from 
imposing franchise fees for any “telephone business” as defined in RCW 82.16.010 or “service 
provider” as defined in RCW 35.99.010, except that fees may be collected for administrative 
expenses related to such franchise and a utility tax may be assessed. Astound does hereby 
warrant that its Authorized Activities under the Franchise are those of a telephone business as 
defined in RCW 82.16.010 or of a service provider as defined in RCW 35.99.010. 

 
B. Administrative Fees. Astound shall be subject to an administrative fee for 

reimbursement of the actual costs associated with the preparation, processing, and approval of 
this Ordinance, provided that such reimbursement shall not exceed $5,000. These costs shall 
include but not be limited to wages, benefits, overhead expenses, equipment, and supplies 
associated with such tasks as plan review, site visits, meetings, negotiations, and other functions 
critical to proper management and oversight of the City’s rights-of-way. Administrative fees 
exclude normal permit fees for permits issued under Chapter 12.65 CMC. 

 
C. Additional Work. In the event that Astound submits a request for work beyond the 

scope of the Franchise, or submits a complex project that requires significant comprehensive 
plan review or inspection, Astound shall reimburse the City for amendments and expenses 
associated with the project. Astound shall pay such documented costs within thirty (30) days of 
receipt of invoice from the City.  

 
D. Failure to Pay. Failure by Astound to make full payment of any undisputed City-issued 

invoices within the time specified shall be considered sufficient grounds for the termination of all 
rights and privileges existing under the Franchise utilizing the procedures specified in Section 6 
herein.  

 
E. City Utility Tax. If Astound provides services to customers within the City, Astound 

shall become subject to the City’s utility tax set forth in Chapter 3.70 CMC, as applicable.  
 
Section 11. Notices. Any notice to be served upon the City or Astound shall be delivered to the 
following addresses, respectively: 
 
 City of Covington 
 Attn: City Manager  
 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 
 Covington, WA 98042-4964 
 Email:   
 Phone:  (253) 480-2400 

44 of 74



11 
 

    
 Astound Broadband, LLC. 
   Attn: James A. Penney, EVP 
 401 Kirkland Parkplace 
 Suite 500 
 Kirkland, WA 98033 
  
 Email: jpenney@wavebroadband.com 
 Phone: 425-896-1891  
 
 with an additional copy to:  
  
 Cinnamon Mueller 
 307 N. Michigan Ave., Suite 1020 
 Chicago, IL 60601 
 
Section 12. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is held to 
be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, either party may deem the 
entire Franchise to be affected and therefore nullified and terminated. However, in the event that 
a determination is made that a section, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance is invalid or 
unconstitutional, the parties may agree to treat the portion declared invalid or unconstitutional as 
severable and maintain in force the remaining provisions of this Ordinance; provided that, if the 
City elects to enforce the remaining provisions of this Ordinance without agreement by Astound, 
Astound shall have the option to terminate the Franchise.  
 
Section 13. Reservation of Rights. The parties agree that this Ordinance is intended to satisfy 
the requirements of all applicable laws, administrative guidelines, rules, orders, and ordinances. 
Accordingly, any provision of this Ordinance or any local ordinance that may conflict with or 
violate the law shall be invalid and unenforceable, whether occurring before or after the 
execution of this Ordinance, it being the intention of the parties to preserve their respective rights 
and remedies under the law, and that nothing in this Ordinance is intended to constitute a waiver 
of any rights or obligations by either party under the law.  
 
Section 14. Police Powers. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to affect the City’s 
authority to exercise its police powers. Astound shall not by the Franchise obtain any vested 
rights to use any portion of the City’s right-of-way except for the locations approved by  the City 
in the Franchise Area and then only subject to the terms and conditions of the Franchise. The 
Franchise and the permits issued there under shall be governed by applicable City ordinances in 
effect at the time of application for such permits.  
 
Section 15. Future Rules, Regulations, and Specifications. Astound acknowledges that the 
City may develop rules, regulations, and specifications, including a general ordinance or other 
regulations governing telecommunications operations in the City. Such regulations, upon written 
notice to Astound, shall thereafter govern Astound’s Franchise activities herein; provided, 
however, that in no event shall regulations materially interfere with or adversely affect Astound’s 

45 of 74



12 
 

rights pursuant to and in accordance with this Ordinance, or be applied in a discriminatory 
manner as it pertains to Astound and other similar users of such facilities.  
 
Section 16. Publication. This Ordinance or a summary thereof shall be published in the official 
newspaper of the City, the expense of which shall be borne by Astound, and shall take effect and 
be in full force in accordance with Section 3.B herein.  
 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Covington, Washington, at a regular 
meeting thereof on this 30th day of June, 2015. 
 
 

____________________________ 
Mayor Margaret Harto 

 
PUBLISHED:  July 3, 2015 
EFFECTIVE:    

ATTESTED: 
 
      
Sharon Scott 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________ 
Sara Springer 
City Attorney 
 
  

46 of 74



13 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Exhibit A – Astound Broadband, LLC d/b/a Wave Telecommunications System Description and 
Route Map (the “Franchise Area”) 
 
Exhibit B—Astound Broadband, LLC d/b/a Wave Franchise Acceptance Form 
 

47 of 74



.
Created By: Shawn Buck 02/27/2015O:\Covington_GIS_Library\PROJECT_FOLDER\Community_Development\One_Time_Use_Projects\2015\Astound_service_area.mxd

Exhibit "A"
Franchise Area City Limits

Astound Broadband, LLC d/b/a 
Wave Telecommunications System 
Description and Route Map
(the "Franchise Area") 

City Limits
Information shown is for general reference
purposes only.  The City of Covington
makes no warrenty as to its accuracy.48 of 74



15 
 

EXHIBIT B 
Astound Broadband, LLC d/b/a Wave Franchise Acceptance Form 

 
 
 
City Clerk 
City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042-4964 
 
 

This is to advise the City of Covington, Washington, that Astound Broadband, LLC d/b/a 
Wave (“Astound”) hereby accepts the terms and provisions of Ordinance No. 04-15, passed by 
the City Council on June 30, 2015 (the “Franchise”) granting to Astound a non-exclusive 
telecommunications Franchise for ten (10) years.  Astound acknowledges and agrees to abide by 
each and every term of the Franchise. 
 
[Name] 
 
BY     __________________________ 
 
TITLE  __________________________ 
 
DATE  __________________________ 
 
 
This Acceptance was received by the City of Covington on ______________, 2015. 
 
Attested By: 
 
     
City Clerk 
 
 

49 of 74



Consent Agenda Item C-4 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  June 30, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT WITH KING COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT FOR 
FLOOD REDUCTION FUND GRANT.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Don Vondran, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Interlocal Agreement 

 
PREPARED BY:  Ben Parrish, SWM Program Coordinator 
 
EXPLANATION:   
The Flood Reduction Fund Grant was established by the Flood Control District Board of 
Supervisors to provide jurisdictions within King County financial resources to support local 
flood control, stormwater control, or cooperative watershed management projects or programs.  
Covington submitted an application for this competitive grant in June 2014 to be used for 
construction of the Clements/SE 263rd Place Drainage Project.  Our application was successful 
and in September of 2014, Covington was awarded $176,000 for the project.   
 
The Clements/SE 263rd Place Stormwater Conveyance Improvement Project was identified as a 
project to be completed in 2015 as a part of the Surface Water Management (SWM) rate study.  
This project will replace an undersized and failing private conveyance system that connects 
several stormwater outfalls north of SE 263rd Place to the system on 159th Avenue SE.  The new 
conveyance system will be installed in the appropriate easement and provide increased capacity.  
The $247,523 total project cost was included in the 2015 budget and by utilizing two grant 
opportunities, 90% of the total project cost will be reimbursed with the remainder covered by the 
city’s SWM CIP funds.  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
Not accept the King County Flood Control District Flood Reduction Fund Grant of $176,000 for 
the Clements/SE 263rd Place Drainage Project and cover the entire cost of construction with 
SWM CIP funds.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Preliminary cost estimates for construction is $203,000. The project was awarded $176,000 from 
a King County Flood Control District Flood Reduction Fund Grant to fully fund construction.  
The remaining balance of $27,000 will be covered by SWM CIP funds to primarily cover the 
easement acquisition costs. 
 

50 of 74



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute an Interlocal Agreement with 
King County Flood Control District for Flood Reduction Fund Grant.  

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

51 of 74



Page 1 of 13 
 

AWARD NUMBER 4.14.01 

 
AGREEMENT FOR AWARD OF 

FLOOD REDUCTION GRANT FUNDS 
BETWEEN CITY OF COVINGTON AND KING COUNTY 

 
This Agreement is made between King County, a municipal corporation, and City of 

Covington (referred to herein as “Recipient”), for the purposes set forth herein. This Agreement 
shall be in effect from the date of execution to December 31, 2015. 
 

SECTION 1.   RECITALS  
 

1.1 Whereas, the King County Flood Control District (“District”) is a quasi-municipal 
corporation of the State of Washington, authorized to provide funding for flood control 
and stormwater protection projects and activities; and ;  

 

1.2 Whereas King County is the service provider to the District under the terms of an 
interlocal agreement ("ILA") by and between King County and the District, dated 
February 17, 2009, as amended, and as service provider implements the District's annual 
work program and budget; and 

 

1.3 Whereas, on November 11, 2013, the Board of Supervisors of the District, the District’s 
governing body, passed  Resolution FCD2013-14  which authorizes an allocation 

of $2,666,329 from the District’s budget for the Flood Reduction Grant Program; and 

 
1.4 Whereas, on September 29, 2014 the King County Flood Control District Board of 

Supervisors passed Resolution FCD 2014-12.1, which established criteria for awarding 
grants under the allocation of $2,666,239 from the District’s budget, and approved funding 
for the projects described in Attachment A to that Resolution; and  

 
1.5   Whereas, in accordance with the terms of Resolutions FCD2013-14 and FCD 2014-12.1,   

and in its capacity as service provider to the District, King County has established a 
grant award program, called the Flood Reduction Grant Program, to fund projects 
consistent with Section 1.4 above; and  

 

1.6       Whereas, the Recipient has previously submitted an application for a project to King 
County in accordance with the  Flood Reduction Grant Program Policies and Procedures, 
a copy of which has been furnished by King County to the Recipient and which are 
incorporated herein by this reference (“Grant Policies and Procedures”); and 

 

1.6       Whereas the District’s Board of Supervisors approved funding of Recipient’s application 
for the project, as described in Attachment A to Resolution FCD2014-12.1 in the amount 
of  $176,000 (“Award”); and 

 

1.7       Whereas King County has received a Scope of Work and a Budget for the Project  from 
the Recipient and has determined that the  Scope of Work, attached hereto and 

ATTACHMENT 1

52 of 74



Page 2 of 13 
 

incorporated herein as Exhibit B (“Scope of Work”), and the Budget, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein as Exhibit C (“Budget”), are consistent with the Grant Policies and 
Procedures; and 

 

1.8       Whereas, King County and the Recipient desire to enter into this Agreement for the 
purpose of establishing the terms and conditions under which King County will provide 
funding from the District in accordance with the Policies and Procedures, and the 
Recipient will implement the Project. 

 
 

 SECTION 2.   AGREEMENT  
 
2.1. The Recitals are an integral part of this Agreement and are incorporated herein by this 

reference. 
 
2.2. King County agrees to award the Recipient an award in the total amount of $176,000 

from District funds (the Award).  The Award shall be used by the Recipient solely for the 
performance of the Project, as described in Exhibit A of this Agreement. Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, contains a description of the 
Project as described in Attachment A to Resolution FCD2014-12.1.   King County shall 
pay the Recipient in accordance with the Grant Policies and Procedures.  

 
2.3. The Recipient represents and warrants that it will only use the Award for the Scope of 

Work of this Agreement and in accordance with the Project Budget. The Recipient shall 
be required to refund to King County that portion of the Award which is used for work or 
tasks not included in the Scope of Work. Further, the Recipient agrees to return to King 
County any portion of the Award that is not expended or remains after completion of the 
Scope of Work. 
 

2.4. Activities carried out for this Project and expenses incurred by the Recipient may predate 
the execution date of this Agreement provided that 1) they have been identified by 
Recipient as being within the scopes of nos. 2) and 3) below, and have been approved by 
the County as being within such scopes; 2) The activities  are  specified in the Scope of 
Work of this Agreement; 3) the expenses are incurred in carrying out the Scope of Work 
and are authorized by this award as identified in the Budget of this Agreement; 4) such 
activities and expenses otherwise comply with all other  terms of this Agreement; and 5) 
reimbursements shall be paid to the Recipient only after this Agreement has been fully 
executed. 

 
2.5. The Recipient shall invoice King County for incurred expenses using the Request for 

Payment form and Progress Report, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 
D, for those documented and allowable expenses identified in the Budget and according 
to the rules set forth in the Grant Policies and Procedures.   A progress report (with or 
without a request for payment) shall be made no less frequently than every six months 
after the effective date of this Agreement nor more frequently than every three months 
after the aforementioned date.  Advances are allowable only for anticipated expenses to 

53 of 74



Page 3 of 13 
 

be incurred in the next three months from the date of submission of the Request for 
Payment for work that is included in the Scope of Work of this Agreement, and identified 
as such in the Request. Documentation of payments made from advances shall be 
submitted to King County prior to any further requests for payment.    No advances shall 
exceed 80% of the total Award. The final request for payment shall be submitted with the 
Final Report described in Section 2.5 of this Agreement and shall be no less than 20% of 
the Award.   

 
2.6. The Recipient shall be required to submit to King County a final report which documents 

the Recipient’s completion of the work in conformance with the terms of this Agreement 
within thirty (30) days after the completion of the work and submit a Close-out Report, 
the form of which is attached and incorporated herein as Exhibit E to this Agreement.  
The final report shall, among other things, summarize the project’s successes and shall 
address the watershed benefits accomplished by the work in a format provided by King 
County for this purpose as set forth in the Grant Policies and Procedures.  
 

2.7. The Recipient's expenditures of Award funds shall be separately identified in the 
Recipient's accounting records.  If requested, the Recipient shall comply with other 
reasonable requests made by King County with respect to the manner in which Project 
expenditures are tracked and accounted for in the Recipient's accounting books and 
records.  The Recipient shall maintain such records of expenditures as may be necessary 
to conform to generally accepted accounting principles further described in Section 2.8. 
below and to meet the requirements of all applicable state and federal laws. 
 

2.8. The Recipient shall be required to track project expenses using the Budget Accounting 
and Reporting System for the State of Washington ("BARS") or Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles set forth by the Financial Accounting Standards Board or by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board.   
 

2.9. King County or its representative, and the District or its representative shall have the 
right from time to time, at reasonable intervals, to audit the Recipient's books and records 
in order to verify compliance with the terms of this Agreement.  The Recipient shall 
cooperate with King County and the District in any such audit. 
 

2.10. The Recipient shall retain all accounting records and project files relating to this 
Agreement in accordance with criteria established by the Washington State Archivist 
Local Government Common Records Retention Schedule (CORE) as revised.  
 

2.11. The Recipient shall ensure that all work performed by its employees, agents, contractors 
or subcontractors is performed in a manner which protects and safeguards the 
environment and natural resources and which is in compliance with local, state and 
federal laws and regulations.  The Recipient shall implement an appropriate monitoring 
system or program to ensure compliance with this provision. 
 

2.12. The Recipient agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless King County, and the 
District, their elected or appointed officials, employees and agents, from all claims, 

54 of 74



Page 4 of 13 
 

alleged liability, damages, losses to or death of person or damage to property arising out 
of any acts or omissions of the Recipient, its employees, agents, contractors or 
subcontractors in performing its obligations under the terms of this Agreement. 
 

2.13. The Recipient agrees to acknowledge the District as a source of funding for this project 
on all literature, signage or press releases related to said project. 
 

    SECTION 3.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
3.1. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and 

their respective successors and assigns. 
 
3.2. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the 

subject matter hereof.  No prior or contemporaneous representation, inducement, promise 
or agreement between or among the parties which relate to the subject matter hereof 
which are not embodied in this Agreement shall be of any force or effect. 

 
3.3. No amendment to this Agreement shall be binding on any of the parties to this 

Agreement unless such amendment is in writing and is executed by the parties.  The 
parties contemplate that this Agreement may from time to time be modified by written 
amendment which shall be executed by duly authorized representatives of the parties and 
attached to this Agreement. 

 
3.4. Each party warrants and represents that such party has full and complete authority to 

enter into this Agreement and each person executing this Agreement on behalf of a party 
warrants and represents that he/she has been fully authorized to execute this Agreement 
on behalf of such party and that such party is bound by the signature of such 
representative. 

 
3.5. The Project shall be completed by no later than December 31, 2015.  In the event that the 

Project is not completed by this date, King County has the discretion, but not the 
obligation, to terminate this Agreement and request and receive any unexpended Award 
funds that may be held by the Recipient.   

 
3.6. This Agreement may be signed in multiple counterparts. 
 
3.7. If any provision of this Agreement or of any other agreement, document or writing 

pursuant to or in connection with this Agreement, shall be wholly or partially invalid or 
unenforceable under applicable law, said provision will be ineffective to that extent only, 
without in any way affecting the remaining parts or provision of said agreement, provided 
that the remaining provisions continue to effect the purposes of this Agreement.  
 

3.8. The amount of the Award has been fully funded by the District.  To the extent that 
funding of the Award requires future appropriations by the King County Council, King 
County’s obligations are contingent upon the appropriation of sufficient funds by the 
King County Council to complete the Scope of Work.  If no such appropriation is made, 

55 of 74



Page 5 of 13 
 

this Agreement will terminate at the close of the appropriation year for which the last 
appropriation that provides funds under this Agreement was made. 

 
This document has been approved as to form by the King County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office 
as of October 24, 2014. 

 
. 

KING COUNTY:      RECIPIENT: 
 
 
By      By       
 
Name      Name       
 
Title      Title       
 
Date      Date       
 
  

56 of 74



Page 6 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT A: Project Description   

 

APPLICANT PROJECT DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT  

City of Covington The project will replace an undersized, homeowner installed, 

drainage system that conveys municipal surface water to Big 

Soos Creek.  There have been flooding and maintenance issues 

in this area for quite some time and this project aims to fix those 

problems. 

$176,000 

 

EXHIBIT B: SCOPE OF WORK 

 
TASKS ACTIVITIES AND DELIVERABLES TOTAL 

SHARE OF 

AWARD 

FUNDS 

DATES 

 

Task 1: 

Project 

Design 

Consultant will work with the city and property owners to design 

project.  Consultant will create Plans, Specifications and Bid documents 

Recipient shall deliver: 

• A copy of the final Project Design (Design) approved by the 

Recipient.  

All documents can be made available in downloadable electronic media 

or in paper form or both. 

0% 

48,354 

Spring 

2015 

Task 2: 

Acquire 

Easements 

Consultant will work with the City and property owners to acquire 

easement for new stormwater conveyance system. 

0% 

23,169 

Early 

Summer 

2015 

Task 3: 

Bid Project 

Send project out for bid, select contractor and finalize contract. 0% Summer 

2015 

Task 4: 

Constructio

n of Project 

Install new conveyance system 

Recipient shall deliver: 

• A copy of the fully executed contract (Contract) between the 

Recipient and the selected contractor prior to any work carried 

out by the contractor to include, as an integral part or 

addendum or by reference, the Design to be carried out by the 

Contractor. 

All documents can be made available in downloadable electronic 

100% 

176,000 

Summer/ 

fall 2015 

Permits/ 

permission 

(if 

applicable) 

State all required project permits and authorizations (including right-of-

way access) as follows: 

Name of permit, issuer, recipient, purpose and inclusive dates.  If no 

permits or authorizations are required, state that none required. 

 

N/A 

Credits As part of your project deliverables, provide a plan of how, where and 

when this grant will be acknowledged. 

 Summer 

2014-Fall 

2015 Credit will be given at all public meeting and in written publication that 

pertain to this project. 

TASK 5 

Final report 

Submit a final report and the financial closeout documentation no later 

than 30 days after the end date of the project. 

 Fall/Winter 

2015 

  

57 of 74



Page 7 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT C: BUDGET 

 

BUDGET ITEM 

  

  

TOTAL 

  

  

GRANT 

AWARD 

SHARE 

  

  

FINANCIAL MATCH (not required) 

MATCH 

TOTAL 

  

  

SOURCE SOURCE  

SOURCE  
KCFCD 

opportunity 

fund 

City of 

Covington      
 

AMOUNT 

COMMERCIAL 

SERVICES AND 

CREW TIME 

(Design) 

$48,354 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$44,686  $3,668 

 

 $48,354 

COMMERCIAL 

SERVICES AND 

CREW TIME 

(Construction) 

$176,000 $176,000     

REAL ESTATE-

RELATED COSTS 

(Easement 

Acquisition) 

 

$23,169   $23,169 

 

 $23,169 

TOTAL $247,523 $176,000 $44,686 $26,837  $71,523 

 

STAFFING  

PROJECT SUPPLIES  

COMMERCIAL SERVICES 

AND CREW TIME 

Design cost estimate from consultant task order for design 

Construction cost from consultants preliminary engineers 

estimate 

TRANSPORTATION  

OFFICE 

EXPENSES/OVERHEAD 

 

OTHER  

REAL ESTATE-RELATED 

COSTS 

Easement acquisition cost from consultant 

TOTAL $247,523 

  

58 of 74



Page 8 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT D: REQUEST FOR PAYMENT AND PROGRESS REPORT 

 
 

Water and Land Resources Division 

River and Floodplain Management Section 

 

          

KING COUNTY FLOOD REDUCTION GRANT PROGRAM Payment Request 
          

Date   Request number     

Recipient Name   

Contact Name   

Phone         

Address 1   

Address 2   

City, State, Zip Code   

Request #   Dates  (beginning & end date for this claim)   

  

      

Instructions:  Complete this spreadsheet and attach your financial / accounting system reports to document all expenses 

          

PROJECT NAME   PROJECT CODE   

          

Budget Line Item                  

(From Exhibit B 

Budget) Budgeted Current Request 

Amount of all 

Previous Requests 

Balance        

Remaining 

       $                                 -    

         $                                 -    

         $                                 -    

         $                                 -    

         $                                 -    

         $                                 -    

         $                                 -    

         $                                 -    

         $                                 -    

TOTALS:  $                                 -     $                                 -     $                                 -     $                                 -    

          

Amount from Current Request above requested as an advance     

          

EXPLANATION: 

 

59 of 74



Page 9 of 13 
 

 

Water and Land Resources Division 

River and Floodplain Management Section 

 

 FLOOD REDUCTION GRANT PROGRESS REPORT 

  Date 01/00/00 

PROJECT 0 

PROJECT NUMBER 0 

Recipient Name 0 

Contact Name 0 

Phone 0 

Address 1 0 

Address 2 0 

City, State, Zip Code 0 

  

 Request # 0 

Dates  (beginning & end date for this 

claim) 0 

  

 

SCOPE OF WORK ITEM 

DELIVERABLES:  Progress / Status/percentage completed (note 

approximate or actual dates) 

1)   

2)   

60 of 74



Page 10 of 13 
 

3)   

4)   

5)   

Add more pages if necessary 

 

Please mail or e-mail all documents to:       

 

Maureen Dahlstrom   

 

 

Water and Land Resources Division   

 

 

Department of Natural Resources and Parks   

 

 

KSC-NR-0600   

 

 

201 South Jackson 

Street, Suite 600     

 

 

Seattle, WA    98104-3855 

Maureen.dahlstrom@kingcounty.gov 

206-477-4777 

  

 

  

61 of 74



Page 11 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT E  
CLOSE-OUT REPORT 

 

Recipient       

Project title       

Project start and end dates       

Total award $      

Total spent $      

Amount due at close-out $      

Total unspent $      
 

Submit the following: 

PROGRAMMATIC CLOSE-OUT 

Checklist 

 
Previously 

Submitted 
Attached 

1. Letter(s) of commitment from key partners 

 
  

2. Final report documenting the successful completion of the project 

according to the exhibit A: Scope of Work & timeline in your 

agreement.  
  

3. Documentation of measurement methods and timelines and any 

results to date. 
  

FOLLOWING ITEMS TO BE INCLUDED AS APPLICABLE 

 KCFCD 

acknowledge-

ment 

4. Selection of outreach materials, such as: handouts, 

brochures, posters, newspaper clippings, press releases, 

and web page screen hard copies 
   

5. Copies of selected printed materials, created for the 

project or about it, &/or other items that illustrate the 

successful completion of the project 
   

6. Selected copies of pictures, film, video, PowerPoint 

presentation in CD, DVD, email &/or documentation 

presenting your project, if applicable 
   

FINANCIAL CLOSE-OUT   

7. Attach receipts &/or auditable accounting detail (may include: 

ledger-based copies, cancel checks, & payroll records) 
  

8. Documentation of cash and in-kind match if any   

 

CONTINUED 

 

 

 

 

62 of 74



Page 12 of 13 
 

King County Flood Reduction Grant Program Fiscal Close-Out 

          

Date         

Recipient Name 

 

PROJECT NAME 0 

PROJECT 

CODE 0 

AWARD 
 Budget Line Item                  

(From Exhibit B Budget) Budgeted 

Amount of all 

Previous Requests Balance Forfeited 

  $                    -       $                    -    

 

 

 $                    -       $                    -    

 

 

 $                    -       $                    -    

 

 

 $                    -       $                    -    

 

 

 $                    -       $                    -    

 

 

 $                    -       $                    -    

 

 

 $                    -       $                    -    

 

 

 $                    -       $                    -    

 

 

 $                    -       $                    -    

 TOTALS:  $                    -     $                    -     $                    -    

 

  MATCH 

Item Budgeted Actual Balance Source 

       $                    -     

       $                    -     

       $                    -     

       $                    -     

       $                    -     

       $                    -     

       $                    -     

       $                    -     

       $                    -     

       $                    -     

   $                    -    $                    -    $                    -     

NOTES 

      

CONTINUED 

PROVISIONS 

63 of 74



Page 13 of 13 
 

By signing this Financial CLOSEOUT, I ______________________, an authorized representative of the 

above named award recipient (RECIPIENT), confirm that I have examined the information contained herein and 

that, to the best of my knowledge, it is a true and accurate account of all the financial expenses and in-kind 

contributions incurred by the above named project in the course of fulfilling the conditions of the AGREEMENT 

between RECIPIENT and King County (COUNTY).  

I hereby acknowledge that there are no further expenses associated with this project, nor any pending or future 

claims to the COUNTY and that the COUNTY is not liable for any expenses not documented in Attachment B 

(Budget) of the AGREEMENT.  I understand that the RECIPIENT is fully bound by the provisions of the AGREEMENT 

including, but not limited to, the return of COUNTY funds that are unspent or whose spending is unsubstantiated 

according to the terms of the AGREEMENT and the right to examine records.  I further understand that the 

COUNTY, upon examining the financial close-out and the final report submitted by the RECIPIENT will determine 

the amount of the balance due to the RECIPIENT. 

 

SIGNED_____________________________________________________ DATE ____________ 

 

 Approved for Close-Out  Not approved for close-out  

 

 

EXAMINER SIGNATURE: _________________________  DATE: ______________ 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

END OF EXHIBIT E 

 
 

64 of 74



Consent Agenda Item C-5 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  June 30, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:   AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A LEASE EXTENSION 

WITH MODERN BUILDING SYSTEMS, INC. FOR THE CITY 
MAINTENANCE FACILITY FOR AN ADDITIONAL 36 MONTHS. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Regan Bolli, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT (S):  
1. Lease Agreement:  June 2012 – June 2015 
2. Proposed Lease Extension with Modern Building Systems, Inc. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Shellie Bates, Programs Supervisor 
 
EXPLANATION:   
On June 24, 2008, the city council authorized the city manager to execute a lease agreement with 
Modern Building Systems, Inc. for a 24’ x 60’ modular office building for the city’s interim 
maintenance facility.  The lease agreement was for a period of thirty-six (36) months, with an 
option to renew for an additional twelve (12) months.  At the end of the thirty-six (36) month 
period, staff determined that the interim maintenance facility would still be needed for an 
additional thirty-six (36) month period. 
 
On June 12, 2012, the city council authorized the city manager to execute a lease extension with 
Modern Building Systems, Inc. for an additional period of thirty-six (36) months.  That thirsty-
six (36) month period is ending and the interim maintenance facility is still required. 
 
Staff is requesting that city council authorize the city manager to extend the lease agreement for 
another thirty-six (36) month period at the same lease rate as the previous lease agreement. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Do not execute the lease agreement renewal and find another location for the maintenance staff, 
vehicles, and equipment.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The monthly lease payment is $1,422.66, which includes two units and aluminum ramp/stairs.  
The annual amount is $17,071.92, funded as follows: 

• Street Fund – 40% ($6,828.77) 
• Surface Water Management Fund – 40% ($6,828.77) 
• Parks Maintenance Fund – 20% ($3,414.38) 

 

65 of 74



CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute a 36-month Lease 
Extension with Modern Building Systems, Inc., in substantial form as 
Attachment 2 hereto, for the city’s maintenance facility. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

66 of 74



ATTACHMENT 1

67 of 74



68 of 74



69 of 74



 Providing Permanent and 
Temporary Building 

Solutions For Commercial 
Modular Buildings Since 

1971  
Including: 

Design 
Engineering 

Manufacturing 
Delivery 

Installation 
Leasing 

Financing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Aumsville, OR 

9493 Porter Road 
P.O. Box 110 

Aumsville, OR 97325 
 

503-749-4949 
Fax 503-749-4950 

 
 

Pacific, WA 
1550 Thornton Ave SW 

Pacific, WA 98047 
 

253-863-8863 
Fax 253-863-8867 

 
West Sacramento, CA 

605 Sutter St 
W Sacramento, CA  95691 

 
916-985-9852 

Fax 916-985-9865 
 

Peachtree, GA 
312 Crosstown Rd, #183 

Peachtree, GA 30269 
678-489-7071 

 
800.682.1422 

modernbuildingsystems.com 

 

 
City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st Street Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042 
 
ATTN: Shellie Bates 
 
Shellie, 
 
Per our conversation June 10, 2015; this letter will serve as a 36 month extension 
on your current lease of a 24 x60, Units #1471 & 1472, Ser #2008.A.A66-A, 
extended on June 12, 2012, and attached here to. Your current lease expired(s) on 
6/12/2015 and will now expire on6/12/2018, with all previous terms and 
conditions to remain in effect.  There will be no charge for this extension. 
 
Modern Building Systems and the City of Covington mutually agree to waive the 
terms of paragraph 16 of the lease and extend the lease pursuant to the terms here 
in. 
 
Please sign below as your acceptance of this agreement and return via fax as soon 
as possible. 
 
Please feel free to call me with any questions at (253) 863-8863. 
 
 
___________________________ __________ 
Signed      Date 
 

 
___________________________ ___________ 
Lessor     Date 

 
Sincerely, 
 
 

  
Lynn 
 

ATTACHMENT 2

70 of 74



 Agenda Item 3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: June 30, 2015 
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSS SELECTION OF CITIZEN AND HONORARY CITIZEN OF THE YEAR. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Karla Slate, Communications and Marketing Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):    
1.  Nominations for Citizen of the Year and Honorary Citizen of the Year (to be provided 

separately).  
 
PREPARED BY:  Karla Slate, Communications and Marketing Manager 
 
EXPLANATION:     
In years past, the City has recognized Citizens of the Year for their contributions to the 
community of Covington.  The person(s) selected will be honored by the City at the July 14 
Council Meeting and at the Covington Days Festival on July 18. Previous Citizens of the Year 
include:   
 

1998 Dianne Heide 
1999 Eric Doan, Larry Harto, Margaret Harto, and Dr. William H. Modglin, Jr. 
2000 Larry Clements and Sharon Clements 
2001 Gerry Crick and Don Henning 
2002 Mary Pritchard 
2003 Steve Delvo 
2004 Pat Sullivan 
2005 Rob MacDonald 
2006 Lloyd Evens 
2007 Kevin Holland and Meg Holland 
2008 Dave Lucavish  
2009 Barbara Grohe 
2010 Jean Young 
2011 George and Susan Pearson 
2012 Jeff Wagner 
2013 Bryan Higgins  
2014 Steven Pand 

 
The City has also recognized non-residents of Covington as Honorary Citizens of the Year for 
their contributions to the community. Previous Honorary Citizens of the Year Include: 
 

2001 Jim Ramseth and Pat Ramseth 
2002 Katie Pagenkopf 
2003 Bob Nelson 
2004 Shar Wagers and Greg Wingard 
2006 Sue Smith 

71 of 74



2007 Hugh Kodama 
2008 Sonia Foss 
2009 Daniel Key 
2010 Jim Schneider 
2011 Richard and Ina Balash 
2012 Leslie Hamada 
2013 Julie Stein 
2014 Krista Bates 

 
In 2015, as in years past, promotional materials were prepared and distributed to announce that 
the City was accepting nominations and nomination forms were available online and at City 
Hall.  Nominations were accepted from June 1 through June 25.     
 
ALTERNATIVES:    
A. Re-open nomination period.  
B. Do not select a Citizen or Honorary Citizen of the Year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None.    
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  _____Ordinance   _____Resolution        X  Motion           Other  

 
Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember _____________ 
seconds, to name _________________ as Covington’s Honorary Citizen of the 
Year for 2015. 
 
Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds, to name __________________ as Covington’s Citizen of the Year for 
2015. 
 
 

 
 

72 of 74



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  June 30, 2015 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

7:00 p.m. Tuesday, July 14, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

73 of 74



 
 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

www.covingtonwa.gov 
 
Tuesday, July 14, 2015                                                                                                          City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                                            16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Hawk Property Update (Colin Lund) 
• 2015 Citizen of the Year Proclamation 
• 2015 Honorary Citizen of the Year Proclamation 

 
RECEPTION FOR CITIZEN AND HONORARY CITIZEN OF THE YEAR 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Speakers will state their name, address, and organization. Comments are directed to the City Council, 
not the audience or staff. Comments are not intended for conversation or debate and are limited to no more than four minutes 
per speaker.  Speakers may request additional time on a future agenda as time allows.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  June 30, 2015 Special Meeting (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Approve WRIA 9 Interlocal Agreement Renewal (Vondran) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Discuss and Consider Amendments to Animal Control Regulations (Hart) 

 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT *See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

• To Review the Performance of a Public Employee Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act – reasonable accommodations provided upon request a minimum of 24 hours in advance 
(253-480-2400). 

Draft 
As of 6/25/2015 

 

74 of 74

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	06-30-2015 Special Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, June 30, 2015                                                                                                        City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Item 1 BLUE SHEET_Sister City Resolution_30June2015
	Item 1 Attachment 1 RESOLUTION_Sister City Program_30June2015
	Item 2 Blue Sheet_Letter of Intent
	Agenda Item 2

	Item 2 Attachments 1 & 2 Letter of Intent with Tatsuno City(English)
	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 06-30-2015 Green Sheet Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment 1 05.27.2015 Joint Mtg with BD & MV Minutes
	INTRODUCTIONS:
	Mayor Harto introduced new Covington City Manager Regan Bolli.  The councils and staff of the three cities then each introduced themselves.
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
	Mayor Harto called for approval of the agenda.
	OPENING REMARKS – MAYOR HARTO:
	ITEMS FOR JOINT COUNCIL DISCUSSION:
	1.  King County Council Update from Councilmember Reagan Dunn.
	2.  Update on Current and Future Projects.
	3.  Parks and Trails Presentation.
	Maple Valley Parks & Recreation Director Greg Brown, Covington Parks & Recreation Director Scott Thomas, and Black Diamond Public Works Director Seth Boettcher gave the report on this item.
	Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and staff provided responses.
	4.  Update on Both Interlocal Agreements.
	Covington Public Works Director Don Vondran and Covington Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the report on this item.
	Councilmembers provided comments.
	Mayor Harto recessed the meeting for a five minute break and then re-adjourned.
	5.  Human Services Report.
	Cheryl Hanson, Director of the Black Diamond Community Center; Mark Pursley, Director of the Greater Maple Valley Community Center; and Victoria Throm, Covington Personnel & Human Services Analyst, gave the report on this item.
	Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions; and Ms. Hanson, Mr. Pursley, Ms. Throm, and Mayor Harto provided responses.
	All three councils concurred that it would be beneficial for the three cities to explore opportunities for collaboration.
	6.  Decision to Dissolve Southeast Area Transportation Solutions (SEATS).
	Covington City Manager Regan Bolli gave the report on this item.
	Councilmembers provided comments and discussed.
	All three councils concurred to dissolve SEATS.
	COUNCIL CLOSING REMARKS:
	Mayor Harto invited all councilmembers to proceed around the room to provide remarks regarding the meeting.
	Mayor Harto closed by thanking everyone for their attendance.
	ADJOURNMENT:
	There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:50 p.m.

	Consent C-1 Attachment 2 06.09.2015 Special Joint Mtg w-P&R Commission
	Consent C-1 Attachment 3 06.09.2015 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 06-30-2015 Voucher Green Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachments
	Consent C-3 Green Sheet BLUE SHEET_Astound Franchise Ordinance_30June2015_SBSEDIT
	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 PROPOSED_ORD_Astound Franchise_30June2015
	Consent C-4 Green Sheet 06-30-15 KC Contract Flood Control District Flood Reduction Grant
	Consent C-4 Attachment 1 FLOOD REDUCTION Grant Agreement_Covington
	Consent C-5 Green Sheet 06-30-15 Maint. Facility Lease Agreement Blue Sheet
	Consent C-5 Attachment 1 CAG 1111-12
	cONSENT c-5 aTTACHMENT 2 Lease Extension 2015 Revised
	Item 3 Blue Sheet 6-30-15Citizen and Honorary Citizen of the Year Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 3

	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	I07-14-2015 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Tuesday, July 14, 2015                                                                                                          City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




